
              Municipality of New Lebanon                                                Regular

                                                                                      March 1, 
2011


     The Council of the Municipality of New Lebanon, Ohio, met in regular session on Tuesday, March 1, 2011 at 7:30 p.m. with Mayor Arriola presiding.  Present were Municipal Manager/Fire Chief George Markus, Police Chief Rick Daulton, Service Department Superintendent Scott Brock, Clerk of Council Sandy Wright, and several visitors. Law Director Ronald D. Keener, Zoning Compliance Officer David Lunsford,
and Chief Financial Officer Brenda Etter were absent.
ROLL CALL 

The following members were present at the Call to Order: Raymond Arriola, Linda Green, Gale Joy, Chris Landis, Glena Madden, Christopher Sands, and Douglas Smith. 
INVOCATION

Pastor Gary Eubank from the New Lebanon United Methodist Church gave the invocation.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mayor Arriola stated the next item is the approval of the February 15, 2011 regular meeting minutes.

Mayor Arriola stated are there any corrections or additions that need to be made to these minutes. 
Council Member Green stated on page 279 under old business where it says motion by Mr. Sands, second by Ms. Green should read Mrs. Green.

Mayor Arriola stated all in favor of these amended minutes please signify by saying aye.  All opposed same sign. 
VOICE VOTE ON ABOVE MOTION. MOTION CARRIED.

OLD BUSINESS
Mayor Arriola stated there is no old business on the agenda.  Does anyone have any old business tonight?  Nothing was heard.
NEW BUSINESS
Mayor Arriola stated there is nothing under new business on the agenda.  Does anyone have any new business?  Nothing was heard.
Mayor Arriola stated next is public comments or questions. If anybody has any comments or questions please come forward to the podium and state your name and address for the record.
PUBLIC COMMENTS OR QUESTIONS

Mitch Rowlett stated I am the new president of the Stagecoach Days Committee this year.  I wanted to come here and let everybody know who I am and give you a chance to ask any questions about what is going on this year.  I have heard a lot of rumors that are going around and just wanted to give everybody a chance to ask questions.
Mayor Arriola stated you live in the community I am assuming.

Mr. Rowlett stated yes.

Mayor Arriola asked what is your address for the record?

Mr. Rowlett stated 213 S. Church Street.

Mayor Arriola stated thank you.

Mr. Rowlett stated I just basically wanted to give you a chance to ask any questions and inform you of what is going to be happening.

Mayor Arriola stated I heard you are supposed to be bringing in some additional vendors and some new games.  I have heard about some of the games.
Mr. Rowlett stated last year they had three vendors; we are up to ten.  We have some arts and crafts vendors who are going to be there.  We have the same ride company from last year.  We have a lot of new entertainment scheduled; dance groups; we may have a magician on Saturday; a horse show and a dog show; we have the Cowboys Show scheduled for Friday evening with their wax bullets and shooting coins.  The festival is going to be a lot bigger this year.  We are trying to get everybody in the community involved if we can.   Our biggest concern right now is the funds for the fireworks.  You may have seen the signs and small cans around town and the articles in the Advertiser about the collection for fireworks.  We need $3,000.00 and I think we are up to $500.00.
Council Member Green stated it is going to be good this year.

Council Member Joy asked where are you getting your bands?

Mr. Rowlett stated a lot of them are contacting us.  I believe they are getting the information off the internet.  We have a website @ www.stagecoachdaysfestival.com.  We have one group that is coming in from North Carolina.
Council Member Joy stated just to play.

Mr. Rowlett stated they sing and dance.  They wanted to come here just to sing for us I guess.  We have the Middle School Jazz Band; the Elementary Choir; three small rock bands from around town who would like to play.  They contacted me by the internet.

Council Member Green stated most everything we are keeping is local.
Council Member Joy stated there are a lot of unknown bands in the Oregon District.  I think they would be willing to come in just ……..

Vice Mayor Madden stated for the exposure.

Council Member Landis stated I have not heard any rumors so I must be out of the loop but I like everything I have heard.  Good luck.

Mr. Rowlett stated I just wanted to let you know what is going on.

Vice Mayor Madden stated we have your address we will stop by.

Mr. Rowlett stated the website has all of our contact information.  

Mayor Arriola asked what is the website?

Mr. Rowlett stated it is www.stagecoachdaysfestival.com.

Vice Mayor Madden asked is there a fee for vendors?

Mr. Rowlett stated yes.

Vice Mayor Madden asked how much is the fee?

Mr. Rowlett stated it is $35.00 for a 10 X 10 spot and then there are additional charges for electric and water.  That is all explained on the forms.
Mayor Arriola stated thank you for coming.

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF COMMENTS
Mayor Arriola stated we will go to administrative staff comments.  We will start with Police Chief Daulton. 
Police Chief Daulton stated I nothing tonight sir.

Mayor Arriola stated Fire Chief Markus.

Fire Chief Markus stated I have nothing tonight sir. 
Mayor Arriola stated Zoning Compliance Officer Lunsford.
Municipal Manager Markus stated David has one update.  The question was asked at the last council meeting as to when is the donut shop going to open.  It is probably going to be about the middle of March.
Mayor Arriola stated Chief Financial Officer Etter is not with us this evening. Does she have anything for us?
Municipal Manager Markus stated no but I will cover some of that when I do my manager updates.
Mayor Arriola stated Service Department Superintendent Scott Brock. 
Service Department Superintendent Brock stated I have one thing.  Some of you might have noticed the water leak in front of the library.  I have made contact with them and they are in the process of obtaining a contractor to repair it.  As far as the sidewalk holding water; it looks like it is the grade.  Once they get the repair done and it dries up I will get the engineer to take a look at it.
Council Member Green stated there are a bunch of holes on Clayton Road.  Is it too cold yet to fix them?

Service Department Superintendent Brock stated actually we repaired the holes today.

Mayor Arriola stated Municipal Manager comments.

MUNICIPAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS
Municipal Manager Markus stated I have a four or five comments.  We have completed our annual financial report per the requirements of the State Auditor.  I did not make copies for each individual council member because that is literally a half inch stack of paper.  Anybody that would like to see it can stop by the office.  If a member of the public wants to see it, a copy will be at the front counter.  We do it every year.

The Village is also undergoing a biennial state audit which started today.  Every two years they audit our books and make sure we are doing things according to proper policy and procedure and within the scope of state law as it applies to us with our category of municipality.  If there is anything that comes out on the report I will certainly notify council.
Vectren has to do a survey.  You probably saw this in your packet.  The Department of Transportation requires the survey.  Vectren has subcontracted the work to Heath Corporation.  They will inspect underground piping and outside piping only unless your natural gas meter is inside your house in which case they will need to inspect the inside piping too.  The survey company is driving the individual participants personal vehicles so the vehicles will not have any identification but the employees will have a uniform on as well as a photo ID and there is also a Vectren contact number the customers can call for verification.  As always if something doesn’t look or feel right, call for police personnel to sort out the situation.  This will be coming up shortly.  They did not give us a timeframe; they said within the next several weeks.  The communication was dated February 16th which was about two weeks ago so I would expect we will start to see Heath Corporation employees here shortly.
We also had an email from the Mayors and Manager’s Group that when the Governor said everything was on the program in terms of potential cuts or eliminations as they develop this biennial state budget; one of the things they put there was the SCIP Program which is part of OPWC.  SCIP is the acronym for State Capitol Improvements Program and OPWC is the Ohio Public Works Commission grant program we have been very successful with.  We are five out of five and that is our Main Street Program, our Sanitary Sewer Relining, and our Water System Feeder Main Upgrade.  We have at this point three very competitive grants that we normally would have been notified at the end of January or first part of February if we were going to be funded or not.  Those grant applications in the program, anybody in SCIP is being held up until the state decides whether or not they are going to fund that or they are going to fund it but partially fund it or whatever it is they are going to do.  We as a group have sent letters to the State encouraging them to leave the program alone.  It doesn’t make a whole lot of sense to provide cuts in a program that provides jobs for people, not only in the construction industry but also in the supply industry and other areas.  So, we will see what success those letters may or may not have.
Last Friday the Mayor and I attended a meeting with our State Representative Mike Henne and State Senator Peggy Lehner along with other Mayors and Managers also to see what news they might bring us from Columbus in terms of budget cuts, which directions projects were going to go or not go.  They basically did not have any new information.  Everything is on the table, all the special interest groups are lobbying; we have got a significant $8 billion-dollar hole in the State budget that needs to be filled so there will be some cuts made.  They have to have a balanced budget.  It is just a question of what they are going to cut and when.  They are supposed to have their first draft edition of the budget out March 15th, which is about 2 weeks from now and it might come out a little bit later than that.  That is kind of a floating target for them in terms of a date.  Then we will see as all other governmental entities just exactly what cuts will impact what programs.

We are bidding out the Municipal Cleaning Contract so you will see the advertisement in the Advertiser and the Brookville Star.  There are no problems with our current contractor.  It is just time to bid it out.  The contract will cover the cleaning of the municipal building and the court facility.  The contract can be awarded to separate vendors or one vendor could do both facilities which is how it is done now.
Based on the fact that we do not really know what is going to happen with the budget yet, if we were to lose all local government funding in New Lebanon it would be about $130,000. We have identified specific areas to make recovery cuts should that actually happen.  We talked about how we would respond if this happened last fall when we did the budget workshop and the three reading process.  That is all I have.
Mayor Arriola asked does anyone have anything for the Manager?  Nothing was heard.

COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

Mayor Arriola stated we will go to council member comments.  
Mayor Arriola stated Gale.

Council Member Joy stated I have nothing tonight.

Mayor Arriola stated Linda.

Council Member Green stated I would like to thank everybody for coming.  Thanks Mitch for coming up and talking to us about Stagecoach Days.
Mayor Arriola stated Chris.

Council Member Sands stated I have nothing.

Mayor Arriola stated Doug.

Council Member Smith stated I have nothing.

Mayor Arriola stated Chris.

Council Member Landis stated I have nothing.

Mayor Arriola stated Glena.

VICE MAYOR’S COMMENTS

Vice Mayor Madden stated I would like to thank everyone for coming and good luck.
MAYOR’S COMMENTS

Mayor Arriola stated thanks to everyone for coming.  Thanks Mitch for coming out and letting us know how Stagecoach Days is going.
ADJOURNMENT
Mayor Arriola stated do I have a motion to adjourn this meeting.
Motion by Council Member Green, second by Council Member Madden to adjourn the meeting.
ROLL CALL ON ABOVE MOTION: Council Member Arriola, yes; Council Member Green, yes; Council Member Joy, yes; Council Member Landis, yes; Council Member Madden, yes; Council Member Sands, yes; Council Member Smith, yes; 7 yes 0 no

ALL IN FAVOR.  MOTION CARRIED.

Meeting was adjourned at 7:45 p.m. 
Approved:





_____________________________________​_




Mayor



                    Date

_______________________________________________
Clerk of Council

                    Date

